## **CITY OF GREENACRES**

### PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA



# INVITATION TO BID FIRE/BURGLAR ALARM & SPRINKLER SYSTEMS BID NO. 24-022

DEPARTMENT OF PURCHASING

CITY OF GREENACRES • 5800 MELALEUCA LANE • GREENACRES • FLORIDA • 33463



#### **CITY OF GREENACRES, FLORIDA**

#### **ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS**

# FIRE/BURGLAR ALARM & SPRINKLER SYSTEMS BID NO. 24-022

The City of Greenacres, Florida is soliciting proposals from experienced and qualified companies to monitor, inspect and provide maintenance to the City's fire/burglar alarm and fire sprinkler systems.

Bid proposals must be submitted online through DemandStar on or before **Wednesday**, **September 25**, **2024 at 3:00 PM**. Any bid received after the designated closing time will be returned unopened.

Bidders desiring copies of the bid document for use in preparing a proposal may obtain a set of such documents from DemandStar at <a href="https://www.demandstar.com">www.demandstar.com</a>.

The City reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bid proposals and to waive any technicalities or irregularities therein. The City further reserves the right to award the agreement to that bidder whose bid proposal best complies with the specifications. Bidders may withdraw their bid proposals by notifying the City in writing at any time prior to the deadline for bid proposal submittal. After the deadline, the bid proposal will constitute an irrevocable offer, for a period of sixty (60) days. Once opened, bid proposals become a record of the City and will not be returned to the bidders.

Monica Powery, CPPB Director of Purchasing

Dated: August 25, 2024 Published: Palm Beach Post



#### **CITY OF GREENACRES**

# FIRE/BURGLAR ALARM & SPRINKLER SYSTEMS BID NO. 24-022

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

<u>Subject</u>	Page Number
Cover	2
SECTION I – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS	
General Terms and Conditions	4
SECTION II - SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS	
Special Terms and Conditions	10
SECTION III – SCOPE OF WORK	
3-1. Scope of Work	14
SUBMITTAL FORMS/ATTACHMENTS	
Bid Proposal Form	18
Bidder Certification	20
Bidder Qualifications	21
Site Inspection Form	
Professional References	
Drug-Free Certification	
List of Proposed Subcontractors	
Scrutinized Companies	
E-Verify Acknowledgement	
Non-Collusive Affidavit	
Affidavit of Compliance with Anti-Human Trafficking Laws	
Notice of Bid / Statement of Non-Response	32



#### CITY OF GREENACRES

#### SECTION I – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

#### 1. GENERAL INFORMATION:

These documents constitute the complete set of specification requirements and bid forms. Bid proposal is to be filled in, signed, and submitted to the Purchasing Department through DemandStar on or before the specified date and time.

It is sole responsibility of the bidder to ensure that his/her bid proposal is submitted successfully on or before the closing date and time. The City shall in no way be responsible for delays caused by any other occurrence. Offers by telephone, email, telegram or facsimile will not be accepted.

All bid proposals must be typewritten or written in ink, and must be signed by an officer or employee having authority to bind the company or firm.

Bidders shall not be allowed to modify their bid proposals after the opening date and time. Bid proposal files may be examined during normal working hours, after bid opening, by appointment only.

For information concerning this bid, please contact:

City of Greenacres Purchasing Department purchasing@greenacresfl.gov (561) 642-2030

#### 2. INQUIRIES:

Interested bidders may contact the City's Director of Purchasing, Monica Powery, CPPB, with questions about the bid by e-mail at <a href="mailto:purchasing@greenacresfl.gov">purchasing@greenacresfl.gov</a>. The Purchasing Department is located in the Greenacres City Hall at 5800 Melaleuca Lane, Greenacres, Florida 33463. All bidders are expected to carefully examine the bid documents. Any ambiguities or inconsistencies should be brought to the attention of the City Director or Purchasing through written communication. The Director of Purchasing will receive written requests for clarification concerning the meaning or interpretations of this bid, until ten (10) days prior to the submittal date. City personnel are authorized only to direct the attention of prospective bidders to various portions of the bid so that they may read and interpret such for themselves. No employee of the City is authorized to interpret any portion of this bid or give information as to the requirements of the bid in addition to what is contained in the written bid document.

#### 3. BID TABULATION:

Bidders may download the bid tabulation directly from DemandStar at <a href="www.demandstar.com">www.demandstar.com</a>. The City does not notify unsuccessful bidders of agreement awards.

#### 4. POSTING OF BID TABULATIONS:

Bid tabulations with recommended awards will be posted for review by interested parties on DemandStar at <a href="https://www.demandstar.com">www.demandstar.com</a> prior to submission through the appropriate approval process and will remain posted for a period of five (5) calendar days. Failure to file a protest to the Purchasing Agent within the time prescribed shall constitute a waiver of proceedings.

#### 5. BID FORMS:

Bidders must use the original Bid Proposal Form(s) provided by the Purchasing Department and enter information only in the spaces where a response is requested. Bid proposals on vendor quotation forms will not be accepted. Bidders may use an attachment as an addendum to the Bid Proposal Form(s) if sufficient space is not available on the original form for the bidder to enter a complete response. Any modifications or alterations to the original bid documents by the bidder, whether intentional or otherwise, will constitute grounds for rejection of a bid proposal. Any such modifications or alterations a bidder wishes to propose must be clearly stated in the bidder's bid proposal and presented in the form of an addendum to the original bid documents.

#### 6. **DEVELOPMENT COSTS:**

Neither the City nor its representatives shall be liable for any expenses incurred in connection with preparation of a response to this Invitation to Bid. Bidders should prepare their bid proposals simply and economically, providing a straightforward and concise description of the bidder's ability to meet the requirements of the bid.

#### 7. DELAYS:

The City may delay scheduled due dates if it is to the advantage of the City to do so. The City will notify bidders of changes in scheduled due dates by written addendum(s).

#### 8. LICENSES AND PERMITS:

When applicable, it shall be the responsibility of the successful bidder to obtain at no additional cost to the City, any and all licenses and permit required to complete contractual service. A copy of these licenses shall be submitted with bid proposal. A copy of these permits shall be submitted prior to commencement of work. Fees for permits from the City shall be waived for work related to this bid, however, the successful bidder must pay any applicable City Business Tax Receipt fees.

#### 9. <u>CERTIFICATIONS:</u>

When applicable, bidder must hold Certificate of Competency issued by the State of Florida or the Palm Beach County Construction Industry Licensing Board and a current Business Tax Receipt for Palm Beach County. Copy of certificate and license must be submitted with bid proposal and must be in the name of the bidder shown on the Bid Proposal page.

#### 10. CONTRACT EXTENSION:

The City reserves the right to require the Contractor to extend contract past the stated termination date for a period of up to 120 days in the event that a subsequent contract has not yet been awarded. Additional extensions past the 120 days may occur as needed by the City and as mutually agreed upon by the City and the contractor.

#### 11. AWARDS:

As the best interest of the City Council may require, the right is reserved to make award(s) by individual commodities/services, all or none or any combination thereof. A bidder desiring to bid "No Charge" must so indicate, otherwise the bid proposal will be construed as incomplete and may be rejected.

#### 12. CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT:

The form of the agreement will be determined by the City. If a sample agreement is included in the bid, the City anticipates that the final agreement will be in substantial conformance with this sample agreement; nevertheless, bidders are advised that any agreement that may result from the bid may deviate from the sample agreement.

It is expressly agreed that the bidder is and shall be in the performance of all work, services, and activities under the

agreement independent and not an employee, agent, or servant of the City. All persons engaged in any work, service or activity performed pursuant to the purchase order shall at all times and in all places be subject to bidder's sole direction, supervision and control. Bidder shall exercise control over the means and manner in which it and its employees perform and work. In all respects bidder's relationship and the relationship of its employees to the City shall be independent and not as employees or agents of the City.

This Invitation to Bid shall be included and incorporated in the final award. The order of contractual precedence will be the agreement or price agreement document, original bid terms and conditions, purchase order, and bidder proposal. Any and all legal action necessary to enforce the award will be held in Palm Beach County and the contractual obligations will be interpreted according to the laws of Florida. Any cost of expenses to enforce the agreement, including attorney's fees, incurred by the City of Greenacres shall be borne by the bidder. Any additional contract or agreement requested for consideration by bidder must be attached and enclosed as part of the bid proposal.

#### 13. SUBCONTRACTING:

If a bidder subcontracts any portion of services provided under a resulting agreement for any reason, bidder must include, in writing, the name and address of the subcontractor and extent of work to be performed. This information shall be submitted with bid proposal response and approved by the City. The City reserves the right to reject a bid proposal, of any bidder, if the bid proposal names a subcontractor who has failed in the proper performance of an agreement or is not in position to perform properly under this award. Subcontractors shall be responsible for meeting and submitting the insurance and licensing requirements set forth in the bid documents to the bidder, or the bidder shall extend their insurance policy to cover the subcontractor and their employees. It shall be the responsibility of the bidder to ensure that insurance and licenses required by this agreement are in effect.

#### 14. <u>E-VERIFY:</u>

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 2021, the Contractor shall:

- Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this Agreement) to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subcontractors' newly hired employees;
- Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an "unauthorized alien" as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes;
- Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and provide the same to the City upon request;
- Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes;
- Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; employment prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and,
- 6. Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, the Contractor may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the date on which the Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the City as a result of the termination of the Agreement.

#### 15. PRICE/DELIVERY:

The City requires a firm price for the agreement period. Any fees incurred will be checked to confirm compliance with quoted

pricing. Failure to hold prices firm through the entire agreement term will be grounds for agreement termination.

All prices shall be F.O.B. destination, freight prepaid (bidder) pays and bears freight charges, bidder owns goods in transit and files any claims). Pricing shall include all transportation charges, labor, and equipment used for delivery to destination and any charges necessary for the exchange of any item that fails to meet specifications.

Price quoted must be the price for new merchandise and free from defects. Any bid proposals containing modifying or "escalator" clauses will not be considered unless specifically requested in the bid specifications.

"Acceptance" as herein used means the acceptance by City of Greenacres, herein referred to as City, after the Purchasing Agent or his authorized agent has, by inspection or test of such items, determined that they fully comply with specifications.

Deliveries of all items shall be made as soon as possible. In the appropriate blank on the bid proposal form, the vendor must indicate the best delivery date after receipt of order (ARO). Deliveries resulting from this bid are to be made during the normal working hours of the City. Time is of the essence and the bidder's delivery date must be specified and adhered to. Should the bidder, to whom the order or agreement is awarded, fail to deliver on or before his/her stated date, the City reserves the right to CANCEL the order or agreement and make the purchase elsewhere. The successful bidder(s) shall be responsible for making any and all claims against carriers for missing or damaged items.

#### 16. NEWS RELEASES:

The bidder shall obtain the prior approval of the City Manager's Office for any and all news releases and/or other publicity pertaining to this bid or the service, study or project to which it relates.

#### 17. ADDITIONS OR DELETION OF SERVICES:

The City reserves the right to add to the services specified in this bid, or to delete any portion of the scope of services at any time.

#### 18. QUANTITIES:

The quantity requirements, if established herein, are estimated. The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the total quantities of any item or service to meet actual needs. There shall be no quantity pricing restrictions.

#### 19. ACCEPTANCE/REJECTION:

The City reserves the right to accept or to reject any or all bids and make the award to that bidder, who in the opinion of the City, will be in the best interest of and/or the most advantageous to the City. The City also reserves the right to reject the bid proposal of any bidder who has previously failed in the proper performance of an award or to deliver on time agreements of a similar nature or who is not in a position to perform properly under this award. The City reserves the right to waive any irregularities and technicalities and may, at its discretion, request a re-bid.

#### 20. ALTERNATIVES/APPROVED EQUAL/DEVIATIONS:

Unless otherwise specified, the mention of the particular manufacturer's brand name or number in the specifications does not imply that this particular product is the only one that will be considered for purchase. This reference is intended solely to designate the type or quality of merchandise that will be acceptable. Alternate offers will be considered and must include descriptive literature and/or specifications. Failure to provide descriptive literature and/or specifications with alternate offers may be cause for disqualification of the bid. The City shall make the determination as to whether any alternate product or

service is or is not equal, and such determination shall be final and binding upon all bidders.

The bidder shall be responsible for reading carefully, and understanding completely, the requirements and specifications of the items bid upon. Any deviation from specifications listed herein must be clearly indicated, otherwise it will be considered that items offered are in strict compliance with these specifications, and the successful bidder will be held responsible. Therefore deviations must be explained in detail on an attached sheet(s) and itemized by number. Any item(s) that do not meet the City's specifications upon delivery will not be accepted and if the item cannot be brought up to specifications in a reasonable time (reasonable time as determined by the City), the bidder will be required to compensate the City for difference in price incurred from going to the next low bidder.

#### 21. NO BID:

Where more than one item is listed, any items not bid upon shall be indicated "NO BID." If no items are bid on, the "Statement of Non-Response" should be returned, with the envelope plainly marked "NO BID" and with the bid number. Failure to do so will be an indication that the bidder does not wish to be considered for future bids/RFPs.

#### 22. OMISSION OF DETAILS:

Omission of any essential details from these specifications will not relieve the bidder of supplying such product(s) as specified.

#### 23. MISTAKES:

In the event of extension error(s) the unit price will prevail and the bidder's total offer will be corrected accordingly. In the event of addition errors, the extended totals will prevail and the bidder's total will be corrected accordingly. If there is a difference between the written price and the numerical price, the written price shall prevail. Bidders must check their bid proposal where applicable. Failure to do so will be at the bidder's risk. Bid proposals having erasures or corrections must be initialed by the bidder.

#### 24. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS:

The obligations of the City under this award are subject to the availability of funds lawfully appropriated for its purpose by the Greenacres City Council.

#### 25. PAYMENT:

The City will make payment after all commodities/services have been received/completed, accepted and properly invoiced as indicated in agreement and/or order. Invoices must bear the purchase order number. Payment shall be made within 30 days of such acceptance.

#### 26. DISCOUNT:

Bidders may offer a discount for prompt payment. However, such discounts will not be considered in determining the lowest net cost for bid evaluation purposes, unless otherwise specified in Special Conditions. Bidders should reflect any discounts to be considered in the bid evaluation in the unit prices bid.

#### 27. ADDITIONAL SERVICES:

The City may require additional services, similar in scope to the requirements of this bid, from time to time. Services not specifically identified in this bid may be added by mutual agreement of the Parties and approval of the City Manager.

#### 28. TERMINATION:

#### a. Termination for Cause

If, through any cause, the bidder shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner, its obligations under the Purchase Order, or if the bidder shall violate any of the provisions of the Purchase Order, the City may upon written notice to the bidder, terminate the right of the bidder to proceed under the Purchase Order, and may hold the bidder liable for any damages caused to the City by reason of such

default and termination. In the event of such termination, any completed services performed by the bidder under the agreement shall, at the option of the City, become the City's property and the bidder shall be entitled to receive equitable compensation for any work completed to the satisfaction of the City. The bidder, however, shall not thereby be relieved of liability to the City for damages sustained by the City by reason of any breach of the agreement by the bidder, and the City may withhold any payments to the bidder for the purpose of off set until such time as the amount of damages due the City from the bidder is determined. The bidder shall not be held liable for damages solely for reasons of delay if the delay is due to causes beyond its control and without its fault or negligence, but this shall not prevent the City from terminating the agreement because of such delay.

#### b. Termination for Convenience

The City reserves the right, in its best interest as determined by the City, to cancel any agreement by giving the bidder a thirty (30) day written notice.

#### 29. PERFORMANCE:

The City may return, for full credit, any item(s) received which fail to meet the City's performance standards.

#### 30. CANCELLATION:

Orders will be subject to immediate cancellation if either product or service does not comply with specifications, as stated herein, or fails to meet the City's performance standards.

## 31. COMPLIANCE WITH OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH:

Bidder certifies that all material, equipment, etc., contained in his/her bid proposal meets all O.S.H.A. requirements. Bidder further certifies that, if he/she is the successful bidder, and the material, equipment, etc., delivered is subsequently found to be deficient in any O.S.H.A requirement in effect on date of delivery, all costs necessary to bring the material, equipment, etc., into compliance with the aforementioned requirements shall be borne by the bidder.

#### 32. MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET:

In compliance with Chapter 442, Florida Statutes, a Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) must accompany any toxic substance resulting from this bid. The MSDS must include the following information:

- (a) The identity used on the chemical product's label.
- (b) The chemical and the common name(s) of all ingredients that have been determined to be a health hazard.
- (c) Physical and chemical characteristics of the hazardous chemicals (i.e. vapor pressure, flashpoint).
- (d) The physical hazards of the hazardous chemical, including the potential for fire, explosion and reactivity.
- (e) The health hazards of the hazardous chemical, including signs and symptoms of exposure.
- (f) The primary route(s) of entry.
- (g) The Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) permissible exposure limit, American Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists (ACGIH) Threshold Limit Value, and any other exposure limit used or recommended.
- (h) Whether the hazardous chemical is listed on the National Toxicology Program (NTP) Annual Report on Carcinogens (latest edition) or has been found to be a potential carcinogen.
- Any general applicable precautions for safe handling and use that are known.
- (j) Any general applicable control measures that are known.
- (k) Emergency and first aid procedures.
- (I) The date of MSDS preparation or last change to it.
- (m) The name, address and telephone number of the chemical manufacturer or importer.

#### 33. SAFETY REGULATIONS:

Equipment must meet all State and Federal safety regulations for grounding of electrical equipment.

#### 34. CODES AND REGULATIONS:

The bidder must strictly comply with all Federal, State and local building and safety codes.

#### 35. FEDERAL AND STATE TAX:

The City is exempt from all Federal, State, and Local taxes. An exemption certificate will be provided where applicable upon request.

The City is exempt from Federal and State Taxes for tangible personal property. The Purchasing Agent will sign an exemption certificate submitted by the successful bidder. Vendors or contractors doing business with the City shall not be exempted from paying sales tax to their suppliers for materials to fulfill contractual obligations with The City, nor shall any said vendor or contractor be authorized to use the City's tax exemption number in securing such materials.

#### 36. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS:

Federal, State, County and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that in any manner affect the items covered herein apply. Lack of knowledge by the bidder shall in no way be a cause for relief from responsibility.

- (a) Bidders doing business with the City are prohibited from discriminating against any employee, applicant or client because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, sex, age or non-disqualifying physical or mental disability, with regard to but not limited to the following: employment practices, rates of pay or other compensation methods, and training selection.
- (b) Identical Tie Bids/Proposals shall be awarded in accordance with the preference established in Section 287.087, Florida Statutes, to a bidder submitting the attached Drug-Free Workplace Certification form properly completed and certified. In the event that tie bids/proposals are received either from bidders who have all submitted a Drug-Free Workplace Certification or none of whom who have submitted such certification, the award will be made in accordance with City purchasing procedures pertaining to tie bids/proposals.
- (c) A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid proposal on an agreement to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid proposal on an agreement with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bid proposals on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor or consultant under an agreement with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO (Currently \$35,000) for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

#### 37. UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE:

The Uniform Commercial Code (Florida Statutes, Chapter 672) shall prevail as the basis for contractual obligations between the awarded bidder and the City for any terms and conditions not specifically stated in the Invitation to Bid.

#### 38. <u>INDEMNIFICATION:</u>

Bidder agrees to protect, defend, reimburse, indemnify and hold the City, its agents, employees and elected officers and hold each of them free and harmless at all times from and against any and all claims, liability, expenses, losses, suits, costs, fines and damages (including attorney fees) and causes of action of every kind and character against or from the City by reason of any damage to property or the environment, or bodily injury (including death) incurred or sustained by any party hereto, or

any party acquiring any interest hereunder, and any third or other party whomsoever, or any governmental agency, arising out of or incident to or in connection with bidder's performance under this agreement, bidder's acts, omissions or operations hereunder, or the performance, nonperformance or purported performances of the bidder or any breach of the items of this agreement; provided, however, the bidder shall not be responsible to the City for damages resulting out of bodily injury or to property which bidder can establish as being attributable to the sole negligence of the City, its respective agents, servants, employees or officers.

This indemnification shall include, but not be limited to, suits, actions or claims brought because of any injuries or damage sustained by any person or property on account of the bidder's operations in connection with the agreement; or on account of or in consequence of any neglect in constructing the work; or because of any act or omission by the bidder; or because of any claims or amounts recovered for any infringement of patent, trademark or copyright; or from any claims or amounts arising or recovered under the bidder under his agreement; as is considered necessary by the City, or in the case no monies are due, his surety shall be held until such suits, actions or claims for injuries or damages, as aforesaid, shall have been steeled and suitable evidence to the effect furnished to the City.

The bidder acknowledges and agrees that the City would not enter into an agreement without this indemnification of the City by the awarded bidder, and that the City's entering into an agreement shall constitute good and sufficient consideration for this indemnification. These provisions shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the agreement. Nothing in the agreement shall be construed to affect in any way the City's rights, privileges, and immunities as set forth in Florida Statutes 768.28.

#### 39. CONE OF SILENCE:

The City complies with the Palm Beach County Lobbyist Registration Ordinance. Section 2-355, Cone of Silence, which provides for a prohibition on any communication, except for written correspondence, regarding a particular request for bid, request for qualification, bid, or any other competitive solicitation between any person or person's representative seeking an award and any member of the City Council or employee authorized to act on behalf of the City Council to award an agreement. The cone of silence shall be in effect as of the deadline to submit the proposal, bid, or other response to a competitive solicitation and shall terminate at the time the City Council or department authorized to act on behalf of the City Council, awards or approves a proposal, rejects all proposals, responses, or otherwise takes action which ends the solicitation process.

All communications regarding this competitive solicitation shall be addressed in written form to Purchasing staff only. These provisions do not apply to oral communications at any public proceeding, selection committee presentation, or negotiation meeting.

#### 40. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

The award is subject to provisions of State Statutes and City Ordinances. All bidders must disclose with their bid proposal the name of any officer, director or agent who is also an employee of the City. Further, all bidders must disclose the name of any City employee who owns, directly or indirectly, an interest of ten (10) percent or more in the bidder's firm or any of its branches.

#### 41. NON-COLLUSION:

Bidder, by submitting a bid proposal, certifies that their bid proposal is made without previous understanding, agreement or connection with any person, firm or corporation making a bid proposal for the same material, supplies, equipment or services and is in all respects, fair and without collusion or fraud.

No premiums, rebates or gratuities permitted; either with, prior to, or after any delivery of material or provision of services. Any such violation may result in agreement cancellation, return of materials or discontinuation of services and the possible removal from the vendor bid list(s). Only one (1) bid proposal from any individual, firm, partnership, or corporation, under the same or different names, will be considered. Should it appear to the City that any bidder is interested in more than one (1) bid proposal for work contemplated; all bid proposals in which such a bidder is interested will be rejected.

#### 42. CODE OF ETHICS:

If any bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the code of ethics of Palm Beach County or the State of Florida with respect to this bid, such bidder may be disqualified from performing the work described in this bid or from furnishing the goods or services for which the bid proposal is submitted and shall be further disqualified from submitting a response on any future bids/RFPs for work, goods or services for the City of Greenacres

#### 43. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:

Any agreement resulting from this bid shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any and all legal action necessary to enforce the agreement will be held in Palm Beach County and the agreement will be interpreted according to the laws of Florida. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party or any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

#### 44. **EEO STATEMENT:**

The City is committed to assuring equal opportunity in the award of agreements and, therefore, complies with all laws prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, sex, age and non-disqualifying physical or mental disability.

#### 45. SEVERABILITY:

The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of the agreement, or the occurrence of any event rendering any portion or provision of the agreement void, shall in no way affect the validity or enforceability of any other portion or provision of the agreement. Any void provision shall be deemed severed from the agreement and the balance of the agreement shall be construed and enforced as if the agreement did not contain the particular portion or provision held to be void. The parties further agree to reform the agreement to replace any stricken provision with a valid provision that comes as close as possible to the intent of the stricken provision. The provisions of this section shall not prevent the entire agreement from being void should a provision which is of the essence of the agreement be determined to be void.

#### 46. INSPECTOR GENERAL OF PALM BEACH COUNTY:

The bidder is aware that the Inspector General of Palm Beach County has the authority to investigate and audit matters relating to the negotiation and performance of any resulting agreement and in furtherance thereof may demand and obtain records and testimony from the bidder and its subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors. The bidder understands and agrees that in addition to all other remedies and consequences provided by law, the failure of the bidder or its subcontractors or lower tier subcontractors to fully cooperate with the Inspector General when requested may be deemed by the municipality to be a material breach of this agreement justifying its termination.

#### 47. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES:

As provided in Section 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time, by entering into the Contract Documents, the Contractor certifies that it and any authorized

subcontractors are not participating in a boycott of Israel. The City and Contractor agree that the City will have the right to immediately terminate the Contract Documents if the Contractor and/or any authorized subcontractors is found to have been placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in a boycott of Israel.

#### 48. PUBLIC RECORDS:

Upon award recommendation or thirty (30) days after opening, whichever occurs first, bid proposals become public records and shall be subject to public disclosure consistent with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. Bidders must invoke the exemptions to disclosure provided by law in the response to the bid, and must identify the data or other materials to be protected, and must state the reasons why such exclusion from public disclosure is necessary.

#### 49. RECORDS/AUDITS:

The City of Greenacres is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall comply with Florida's Public Records Law. Specifically, the Contractor shall:

- (a) Keep and maintain public records required by the City in order to perform the service.
- (b) Upon request from the City's custodian of public records, provide the public agency with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in this chapter or as otherwise provided by law
- (c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract if the contractor does not transfer the records to the City.
- (d) Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost to the City, all public records in possession of the Contractor, or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. If the Contractor transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the contract, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the contract, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City's custodian of public records in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City.

During the term of the contract, the Contractor shall maintain all books, reports and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and standards for records directly related to this contract. The form of all records and reports shall be subject to the approval of the City's Auditor. The Contractor agrees to make available to the City's Auditor, during normal business hours and in Broward, Dade or Palm Beach Counties, all books of account, reports and records relating to this contract.

#### **50. PURCHASING PROTESTS:**

- (a) Right to protest. Any actual bidder, proposer, offeror, vendor or contractor who is aggrieved in connection with an invitation to bid, request for proposals or other competitive selection process may protest such purchase.
- (b) Protest deadline. The deadline for filing a protest is not later than three (3) days (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays) after the date the applicable competitive selection process has been advertised by the City (for protests alleging a deficiency in the advertised competitive selection process) or after the date that notice of the written recommendation of award has been posted on the City's website or purchasing bulletin board by the Purchasing Agent or designee (for protests challenging the

- award). It shall be the responsibility of a bidder, offeror, vendor or contractor to ascertain the advertisement date and/or bid award information from the Purchasing Department. Protestors shall file their protests in writing with the Purchasing Agent during normal office hours of the City, but in no event later than 4:00 p.m. on any normal business day of the City, prior to the expiration of the deadline for protests. Protests shall specifically describe the subject matter and facts giving rise to the protest. Protests shall be deemed effective on the date they are received by the Purchasing Agent.
- (c) Decision. If the protest is not resolved by mutual agreement, the Purchasing Agent shall issue a decision in writing within a reasonable amount of time. The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to settle and resolve a protest of an aggrieved bidder, offeror, vendor or contractor concerning the competitive selection process or award. If the Purchasing Agent is unable to resolve the protest, the Purchasing Agent in consultation with the City Manager shall render a decision. The decision of the City Manager shall:
  - (1) State the reasons for the action taken; and
  - (2) Inform the protestor of its right to appeal as provided in this section.
- (d) Notice of decision. A copy of the decision of the Purchasing Agent and City Manager shall be mailed or otherwise furnished promptly to the protestor and any other party intervening. A refusal to accept a copy furnished by mail or otherwise shall not affect the validity of the decision.
- (e) Appeal to City Council. A protestor may appeal the decision of the City Manager to the City Council by filing a written notice of appeal within seven (7) business days after receipt of the notice of decision of the City Manager. The notice of appeal shall be filed with the City Manager during normal office hours of the City Manager, but in no event later than 5:00 p.m. on any normal business day of the City prior to the expiration of the deadline for the notice of appeal. The notice of appeal shall set forth the grounds for the appeal. The protest shall be heard by the City Council within a reasonable time of the filing of the notice of appeal with the City Manager.
- (f) Finality of decision. A decision of the Purchasing Agent and City Manager regarding a protest which is not timely appealed to the City Manager, or a decision of the City Manager which is not timely appealed to the City Council, or a decision of the City Council regarding a protest, shall be final and conclusive. A bidder, offeror, vendor or contractor who has not timely appealed the decision(s) regarding the protest to the City Council shall not be deemed to have exhausted his or her administrative remedies

- (g) Stay of procurements during protests. In the event of a timely protest under this section, the Purchasing Agent shall not proceed further with the competitive selection process or award until all administrative remedies have been exhausted or until the City Manager makes a written determination that the competitive selection process and/or award without delay is necessary to protect substantial interests of the City. The City Council may, upon determination that a bona fide emergency exists, waive all bid protest procedures and approve an award.
- (h) Failure to follow procedure. Failure to follow the protest procedure set forth herein shall automatically nullify any protest or claim brought by an aggrieved bidder, offeror, vendor or contractor.

#### 51. <u>PUBLIC RECORDS</u> CUSTODIAN:

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT:

CITY CLERK 5800 MELALEUCA LANE GREENACRES, FL 33463 (561) 642-2006 CITYCLERK@GREENACRESFL. GOV



#### **CITY OF GREENACRES**

#### SECTION II - SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

#### 2-1. INTRODUCTION:

The City of Greenacres is requesting sealed bid proposals from experienced and qualified companies to monitor, inspect and provide maintenance to the City's fire/burglar alarm and fire sprinkler systems. Bidders shall become familiar with any and all local conditions that may, in any manner, affect the services required. The bidder shall carefully examine the Invitation to Bid terms and conditions becoming thoroughly familiar with any and all conditions and requirements that may in any manner affect the work to be performed under any resulting agreement. No additional allowance will be made due to lack of knowledge of these conditions.

#### 2-2. BID PROPOSAL SUBMISSION AND WITHDRAWAL:

All bid proposals shall be submitted **online through DemandStar** by **3:00 PM on Wednesday**, **September 18**, **2024**.

The bidder will be responsible for timely delivery. The City assumes no responsibility for bid proposals received after the advertised opening or by other delivery methods than that specified herein. Any bid proposal received after the established deadline **will not** be considered and will be returned unopened to the bidder.

Bidders may withdraw their bid proposals by notifying the City in writing at any time prior to the deadline for bid proposal submittal. After the deadline, the bid proposal will constitute an irrevocable offer, for a period of sixty (60) days. Once opened, bid proposals become a record of the City and will not be returned to the bidders.

Bid proposals must be completed and signed by the authorized representative in the space provided. If the bid proposal is made by an individual, his name and post office address shall be shown. If made by a firm or partnership, the name and post office address of each member of the firm or partnership shall be shown. If made by a corporation, the person signing the bid proposal shall show the name of the state under the laws of which the corporation was incorporated, also the names and business addresses of its president, secretary and treasurer. The bid proposal shall bear the seal of the corporation attested by the secretary. Anyone signing the bid proposal as agent shall file with the bid proposal, legal evidence of his authority to do so.

#### 2-3. BIDDER'S RESPONSIBILITY:

Before submitting a Proposal, each Bidder shall be solely responsible for making any and all investigations, evaluations, and examinations, as it deems necessary, to ascertain all conditions and requirements affecting the full performance of the contract. Ignorance of such conditions and requirements, and/or failure to make such evaluations, investigations, and examinations, will not relieve the Bidder from any obligation to comply with every detail and with all provisions and requirements of the contract, and will not be accepted as a basis for any subsequent claim whatsoever for any monetary consideration on the part of the Bidder.

#### 2-4. ADDENDUM:

The issuance of an addendum(s) is the only official method whereby interpretation, clarification, changes, modifications or additional information may be provided by the City. It shall be the responsibility of each bidder, during and prior to bid submittal to visit DemandStar at <a href="www.demandstar.com">www.demandstar.com</a> to determine if addendums were issued and to obtain such addendums. Failure to do so could result in an unresponsive proposal. Any oral explanation given before the bid opening will not be binding.

The City may issue written addendum(s) up to seven (7) calendar days before the date fixed for receiving the proposals. All addendum(s) issued by the City will include a receipt form, which **must** be signed and included with any proposals that are submitted to the City. In the event multiple addendums are issued, a separate receipt for each addendum must be included with the proposal at the time it is submitted to the City.

#### 2-5. COMPETENCY AND MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS:

Bid proposals will only be considered from bidders which are regularly engaged in the business of providing services as described in this bid and who can provide evidence that they have established a satisfactory record of performance in meeting the minimum and technical qualification requirements established in the bid. The City reserves the right to inspect the bidder's facilities, equipment, personnel, and organization at any time, or take any other action necessary to determine bidder's ability to perform. The City reserves the sole right to determine if a bidder can sufficiently and efficiently provide the required services/commodities in a timely and satisfactory manner as will be required by the specifications herein.

The bidder shall submit the following information with the bid proposal. This information, along with any other data the City considers pertinent, will be used in determining if the bidder is qualified to provide the work specified.

- A. County Business Tax Receipt where the business is located (included with the proposal).
- B. Copy of license (to be included with proposal). Contractor shall be a "State Certified "EC" Electrical Contractor".
- C. Verification of the number of continuous years the bidder has been in business under the same ownership and management. Bid proposals will only be considered from bidders in business for a minimum of five (5) continuous years under the same ownership and management providing the services specified in this bid document.
- D. A minimum of five (5) references for similar work. Preference will be given to bidders with governmental experience. Provide a list and brief description of similar contracts of similar size, with location, dates of contract service, contact name, phone number, type of services provided, and address of proprietor(s). Bidder is responsible for verifying correct phone numbers and contact information. Failure to provide accurate data may result in the reference not being considered.

#### 2-6. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

The awarded bidder(s) shall maintain insurance coverage reflecting at least the minimum amounts and conditions specified herein. In the event the bidder is a governmental entity or a self-insured organization, different insurance requirements may apply. Misrepresentation of any material fact, whether intentional or not, regarding the bidder's insurance coverage, policies or capabilities may be grounds for rejection of the bid proposal and rescission of any ensuing agreement.

The bidder shall provide, pay for, and maintain in force at all times during the services to be performed, such insurance, including Workers' Compensation Insurance, Comprehensive General Liability Insurance, and Business Automobile Liability Insurance with minimum coverage amounts acceptable to the City. All policies shall be issued by United States Treasury approved companies authorized to do business in the State of Florida and having agents upon whom service of process may be made in the State of Florida. Bidder shall specifically protect the City by naming the City of Greenacres as an additional insured under the Policy or certificate.

<u>Workers' Compensation Insurance</u> is to apply for all employees in compliance with the Workers' Compensation Law of the State of Florida, the state where work is performed and all applicable federal laws.

<u>Comprehensive General Liability Insurance</u> with minimum limits of one million dollars (\$1,000,000.00) per occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability. Coverage must be afforded on a form no more restrictive than the latest edition of the Comprehensive General Liability

Policy, without restrictive endorsements, as filed by the Insurance Services Office, and must include:

- Premises and/or Operations.
- Independent Contractors.
- Broad Form Property Damage.
- Broad Form Contractual Coverage applicable to this specific agreement.

Personal Injury Coverage with Employee and contractual Exclusions removed with minimum limits of coverage equal to those required for Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability.

<u>Business Automobile Liability Insurance</u> with minimum limits of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) per occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability. Coverage must be afforded on a form no more restrictive than the latest edition of the Business Automobile Liability Policy, without restrictive endorsement, as filed by the Insurance Services Office and must include:

- Owned vehicles.
- Hired and non-owned vehicles.
- Employers' non-ownership.

Bidder agrees to maintain Business Automobile Liability at a limit of liability not less than \$1,000,000 Each Occurrence. Coverage shall include liability for Owned, Non-Owned & Hired automobiles. In the event bidder does not own automobiles, bidder agrees to maintain coverage for Hired & Non-Owned Auto Liability, which may be satisfied by way of endorsement to the Commercial General Liability policy or separate Business Auto Liability policy.

The bidder shall provide to the City prior to the effective date of the agreement a Certificate of Insurance or a copy of all insurance policies required including any subsection there under. The City reserves the right to require a certified copy of such policies upon request. All endorsements and certificates shall state that the City shall be given thirty (30) days notice prior to expiration or cancellation of the policy.

Bidder hereby acknowledges and agrees that any and all risk of loss regarding the services identified hereunder shall be solely borne by bidder.

#### 2-7. AGREEMENT AWARD:

The Bidder understands that this bid does not constitute an offer or an agreement with the bidder. The City anticipates entering into an agreement with the bidder who will be to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder(s) whose qualifications indicate the award will be to the best interest of the City and who's bid proposal(s) complies(y) with the requirements of the bid documents as determined by the City and is in the best interest of the City. Any agreement issue as a result of this bid will be for an initial term of three (3) year with options for two (2) additional one-year renewals with the mutual agreement of both parties. This could result in a five (5) year agreement. Any renewal will be subject to the appropriation of funds by the City Council.

The City of Greenacres reserves the right to award on an "All-or-None" basis to one bidder or to award to two or more bidders, whenever it is in the best interest or most advantageous to the City of Greenacres.

#### 2-8. CITY CONTRACT COORDINATOR:

The City Contract Coordinator for this project will be Carlos Cedeno, Public Works Director, and the telephone number is (561) 642-2071. After an agreement has been executed, all communications and correspondence shall be directed to the City Contract Coordinator, with email copies of the correspondence to Monica Powery, Director of Purchasing, 5800 Melaleuca Lane, Greenacres, FL 33463, purchasing@greenacresfl.gov.

#### 2-9. VENDOR SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE:

The bidder must submit with their bid proposal the name, address, and phone number of the person(s) to be contacted for the placement of an order and the coordination of service.

#### 2-10. METHOD OF ORDERING:

Vendor shall not proceed on a job prior to the receipt of the Notice to Proceed and the Purchase Order issued by the City of Greenacres Purchasing Department. Invoices must be submitted against each individual Purchase Order referencing the Purchase Order number.

#### 2-11. SPECIFICATIONS:

A purchase order will be issued to the successful bidder with the understanding that all items delivered must meet the specifications and quality set forth herein. Items delivered not as specified and of highest quality will be returned at the bidder's expense. No "seconds" or "defective" items shall be accepted.

#### 2-12. **DEBRIS**:

Contractor shall be responsible for prompt removal of all debris that is a result of this contractual service. The contractor shall be responsible to ensure frequent pick-up of all refuse, scrap materials, and debris that result from contractor operations so that the work site presents a neat and orderly appearance at all times. All debris shall be transported from the premises. No debris shall be deposited as fill on the work site. At completion of the work, the contractor shall remove all work materials, tools, construction equipment, machinery, and surplus materials from the work site and shall leave the site in a ready to use condition.

#### 2-13. PROTECTION OF PROPERTY:

The Contractor shall at all times guard against damage or loss to City property and any other persons in or around the work site, and shall be responsible for replacing or repairing any such damage or loss. The Contractor will be required to report any such damages or loss immediately to the Facilities Superintendent or his designee. Replacement or repairs shall begin within forty-eight (48) hours of the incident that caused the damage. Failure to restore said damage shall result in a deduction from the Contractors payment for the City's expenses incurred to restore the property to its original condition. The Contractor and its subcontractor(s) shall clean, repair or replace any item damaged during the performance of the service to the satisfaction of City at no additional cost.

#### 2-14. WARRANTY:

Equipment, parts, and supplies furnished under this contract shall be the latest improved models in current production, as offered to commercial trade, and shall be of quality material. Used, shopworn, demonstrator, prototype, reconditioned, or discontinued models or materials are not acceptable. The warranty period for equipment provided hereunder shall be offered and provided for a period of three to five years or within the manufacturers' warranty, whichever is the later period. The warranty service period shall commence upon City acceptance of all equipment complying with specifications herein.

Warranty coverage options (as applicable) and pricing offered may be a factor in award. Bidder shall include coverage options along with a detailed description of all equipment and support warranties offered in the proposal response. Warranty details shall include options as applicable such as telephone support, on-site support, loaner equipment, response time, and parts/equipment covered.

#### 2-15. BRAND/MANUFACTURER REFERENCED:

Unless otherwise stated in these specifications, any manufacturer name, trade name, brand name, information or catalog numbers listed in this specification are for information and quality and are not intended to limit competition.

#### 2-16. EQUIVALENTS:

Bidders offering equivalents to the "as specified" items(s) shall submit detailed specifications of the alternate product to the Purchasing Department for evaluation purposes no later than seven (7) days before the bid submittal date. Requests received after this time will not be considered. It is the Bidder's responsibility to provide adequate information to ensure that the proposed equivalent meets the required criteria. Each particular specification, in which the equivalent item differs, must be listed, along with the detailed specification sheet. The City reserves the sole right to determine acceptance of offered item(s) as an approved equivalent. If the product is acceptable, the City will approve it through an addendum

issued through the Director of Purchasing to all the Bidders on record. Bids that do not comply with these requirements shall be rejected, as will bids containing items deemed not to be approved equals.

#### 2-17. BACKGROUND CHECK:

All personnel shall be required to obtain 'unescorted access' approval to 2995 S. Jog Road, Greenacres, Florida prior to being allowed to work inside or outside of the building. This approval shall require a successful Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office (PBSO) fingerprinting and background check. This cost shall be at the contractor's expense. Once approved each individual will be required to display their clearance badge at all times while on site.

#### 2-18. INSPECTION OF SITE:

It is the Bidder's responsibility to visit the sites of the proposed work at locations as indicated herein and become fully informed as to the nature and extent of the work required and its relation to any other work in the area, including possible interference from other site activities. The site inspection form included herein must be signed and submitted with bids. Bids received from Bidders not submitting the mandatory site inspection form will be considered non-responsive and will be rejected.

Bidders shall not visit the site without a City Representative. Bidders must schedule a site visit with William Pazanski, Public Facilities Supervisor, (561) 642-2076, wpazanski@greenacresfl.gov.



#### CITY OF GREENACRES

#### SECTION III - SCOPE OF WORK

#### 3-1. SCOPE OF WORK:

The City of Greenacres is requesting proposals from experienced and qualified companies to monitor, inspect and provide maintenance to the City's fire/burglar alarm and fire sprinkler systems. The City currently has AES-IntelliNet 7744F/7788F Smart Subscriber Units at all nine (9) locations for the fire and burglar alarm systems.

Contractor shall provide all labor, tools, equipment, materials, hardware, and consumables necessary for monitoring, maintenance and repair for the entire Fire and Burglar Alarm Systems and Fire Sprinkler Systems for all locations in the City stated herein.

The City requires fire alarm monitoring, inspection and maintenance services for six (6) locations, and both fire and burglar alarm monitoring, inspection and maintenance services for three (3) locations for a total of nine (9) locations that require service. The City requires fire sprinkler inspections and maintenance for five (5) locations. The successful contractor shall provide properly trained and licensed technicians (technical level II or higher) and all special tools, instruments, equipment, materials, labor, transportation, and services necessary to fully accomplish the service as specified herein. It is the intent for these specifications to describe a functionally complete maintenance and monitoring program to be performed in accordance with these documents. Any work, material, parts or equipment that may be inferred from these documents as being required to produce the intended results shall be supplied by the contractor, whether or not specifically stated.

#### **MONITORING**

Fire alarm monitoring shall be on a 24 hour/seven day per week basis, all required maintenance coverage and service calls on a 24/7 basis and all labor and equipment to perform these services, including the parts and labor for the replacement of peripherals to include FACP batteries, pull stations and all travel time.

- 1. Monitoring Signal shall be received by a U.L. Certified Central Station.
- 2. Immediately retransmit fire alarm signals to PBSO Dispatch Center at (561) 688-3400.
- 3. Immediately retransmit burglar alarm signals to PBSO Dispatch Center at (561) 688-3400. Then inform and follow up with the City Contract Coordinator at (561) 614-7955.
- 4. Dispatch technician to the protected premises to arrive within one (1) hour receipt of a signal where equipment needs to be manually reset by the Contractor.
- 5. Upon receipt of trouble, supervisory, or other signals pertaining to the monitoring and maintenance of these systems, provide notification to City Contract Coordinator, Carlos Cedeño of a full report of each alarm with actions taken and verification that service has been restored. This shall include the nature of the interruption, time of occurrence and restoration of service.

#### **INSPECTION**

An annual inspection with testing and certification of each fire alarm system is required. A quarterly inspection of each fire alarm system shall also be conducted. The inspection, testing and maintenance shall satisfy the requirements of NFPA 72, conform to the equipment manufacturer's recommendations, and verify proper operation of the fire alarm system. A log book shall be maintained at each FACP and each visit, including inspections and repairs shall be noted. Information noted shall include the name of the technician performing the inspection or repair, the time and date of the inspection or repair, and the work performed.

Defective initiating devices shall be replaced with original manufacturer parts designed for the specific system being repaired or other devices U.L. cross listed as compatible with the existing system.

#### **MAINTENANCE**

Contractor shall maintain systems in optimum performance and in compliance with the current Florida Prevention Code adopted edition of NFPA 72, National Fire Alarm Code, and FAC Rule 4A-48. Maintenance shall include performance of a complete system evaluation, adjustments and calibration. A current record log shall be maintained at each fire alarm control panel.

Contractor shall provide all labor and parts required to provide continuous, fully operational systems at all locations. Any part replacement required shall be reimbursed at contractor's cost. Maintenance shall include both corrective and preventative maintenance and shall be performed on site. Maintenance shall include troubleshooting and making recommendations for additional service for all peripheral devices and control panels. Maintenance and monitoring shall be for the fixed monthly cost stated herein and shall include all labor, supervision and travel time.

Sensitivity Testing - Monthly maintenance pricing shall include all labor, material, equipment, ladders, lifts, services and incidentals required to perform sensitivity testing and cleaning of smoke detectors as required by Fire Codes adopted by the Florida Fire Prevention Code or City of Greenacres local amendments.

Contractor shall make additional visits and respond to alarms as necessary at no additional charge. Such visits shall be made promptly when alerted by alarms or as requested by designated City representative.

All work shall be performed in compliance with all applicable codes and to the satisfaction of the City of Greenacres.

#### **PARTS AND MATERIALS**

No parts shall be replaced that are not completely covered by the agreement unless first approved by the Contract Coordinator and then shall be charged as a "PASS THRU" as described herein. No invoice shall be processed for payment unless prior approval is noted on the document.

Payments for parts and materials will be at Contractor's cost. The cost for these items will be a "pass thru" i.e. the Contractor will charge the City the same invoice prices as charged by the suppliers. A copy of the Contractor's invoices from the supplier for such parts and materials will be submitted with the Contractor's invoice for payment.

#### SUPERVISOR SIGNAL

- Communicate immediately with Carlos Cedeño at: (561) 614-7955, Monday through Friday 7:00 AM 4:00 PM and after hours and weekends.
- 2. Dispatch technician (arrival time not to exceed one (1) hour) to investigate.
- 3. Provide notification to City Contract Coordinator, Carlos Cedeño of each alarm with actions taken and verification that service has been restored.

#### **CENTRAL STATION**

Central Station service shall meet general requirements of the NFPA 72 National Fire Alarm Code, 2010 Edition, as indicated in NFPA 72 and shall be fully functional on a 24 hour/ seven day per week basis.

The Central Station must be able to identify the location of the caller including: facility, address and specific alarm if more than one at a facility.

Fire Alarm Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Florida Administrative Code, Rule 69A-48 Fire Safety Standards for Fire Alarm Systems, where applicable. In the event codes change, contractor is

required to comply with the most recent changes. All work performed and all equipment installed shall be in compliance with FS 633.0.

Alarm signals initiated by pull stations, automatic fire detectors, water flow from the automatic sprinkler system, or actuation of other fire suppression systems or equipment shall be treated as activated fire alarms.

#### **PROCEDURES**

The Contractor shall provide an initial <u>intensive service</u> and subsequent evenly spaced regular service. At the discretion of the City, an intensive service may be required at any time during the contract if required.

Regular Service shall be regularly scheduled and consist of the systematic testing and servicing of all alarm systems.

The Contractor is responsible for providing workers who have been trained and certified as competent.

The Contractor shall note any unsafe or adverse physical conditions that may be a contributing cause to a false alarm.

#### **DATA COLLECTION**

The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining a current record log at each fire alarm control panel and timely reporting of all activity to the Contract Coordinator.

#### TIME SCHEDULE AND TIME FRAMES

The Contractor shall schedule the work with the City's Contract Coordinator. All work must be scheduled and have prior approval of the City. Weather and site conditions may interfere with the time schedule. No payments shall be made without verification of service.

#### FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEMS

An annual test, inspection and report of each fire sprinkler system is required. The inspection, testing, report, and maintenance shall satisfy the requirements of NFPA 25, conform to the equipment manufacturer's recommendations, and verify proper operation of the fire sprinkler system.

Contractor shall submit a written estimate for repairs needed to the Fire Marshal for approval along with a copy to the Contract Coordinator. No work shall be performed until it has been approved by the Fire Marshal and Contract Coordinator.

Payments for parts and materials will be at Contractor's cost. The cost for these items will be a "pass thru" i.e. the Contractor will charge the City the same invoice prices as charged by the suppliers. A copy of the Contractor's invoices from the supplier for such parts and materials will be submitted with the Contractor's invoice for payment. No invoice shall be processed for payment unless prior approval is noted on the document.

All work shall be performed in compliance with all applicable codes and to the satisfaction of the City of Greenacres.



#### **BID PROPOSAL FORM**

(Page 1 of 2)

# Monitoring and Maintenance of Fire & Burglar Alarm System (unit price should be stated per month) (monthly price shall include all monitoring and follow-up services to be provided, including travel time to and from City Locations)

time to and from City Locations)				
Item No.	Location	Qty	Unit Price	Extended Price
1.	City Hall 5800 Melaleuca Lane • fire alarm quarterly inspections, runner response, maintenance, and sensitivity testing	12	\$	\$
2.	Public Works 5750 Melaleuca Lane • fire alarm quarterly inspections, runner response, maintenance, and sensitivity testing	12	\$	\$
3.	Fire Rescue Station 94/PBSO District 16 2995 S. Jog Road • fire alarm quarterly inspections, runner response, maintenance, and sensitivity testing	12	\$	\$
4.	Fire Rescue Station 95 5095 Haverhill Road • fire alarm quarterly inspections, runner response, maintenance, and sensitivity testing	12	\$	\$
5.	Community Center 501 Swain Boulevard  • fire alarm quarterly inspections, runner response, maintenance, and sensitivity testing  • burglar alarm monitoring	12	\$	\$
6.	Community Hall 501 Martin Avenue • fire alarm quarterly inspections, runner response, maintenance, and sensitivity testing • burglar alarm monitoring	12	\$	\$
7.	Perry Building 500 Perry Avenue • fire alarm quarterly inspections, runner response, maintenance, and sensitivity testing • burglar alarm monitoring	12	\$	\$
8.	Former City Hall/WIC 5985 10th Avenue N • fire alarm quarterly inspections, runner response, maintenance, and sensitivity testing	12	\$	\$
9.	Fire Rescue Station 96/Public Safety Substation 301 Swain Boulevard  fire alarm quarterly inspections, runner response, maintenance, and sensitivity testing	12	\$	\$
	Total of Items 1 through 9		\$	\$



#### **BID PROPOSAL FORM**

(Page 2 of 2)

Annual Fire Sprinkler System Inspection (annual price shall include travel time to and from City Locations)			
Item No.	Location	Qty	Unit Price
1.	City Hall 5800 Melaleuca Lane	1	\$
2.	Public Works 5750 Melaleuca Lane	1	\$
3.	Fire Rescue Station 95 5095 Haverhill Road	1	\$
4.	Community Center 501 Swain Boulevard	1	\$
5.	Former City Hall/WIC 5985 10th Avenue N	1	\$
Total of Items 1 through 5		\$	

	Other Services – As Needed				
Item No.	Location	Qty	Unit Price	Extended Price	
1.	Labor rate for other services as needed Monday – Friday 8:00 am – 5:00 pm*	1 hr	\$	\$	
2.	Labor rate for other services as needed after 5:00 pm Monday – Friday & on Weekends or Holidays*	1 hr	\$	\$	
3.	Install and Program Additional Radio Communicators as needed**	1 ea	\$	\$	
4.	Monitoring and Maintenance of Additional Radio Communicators (unit price stated per month)	1 mo	\$	\$	

<sup>\*</sup>Labor rates shall represent an hourly rate for the labor required for installation and repairs outside of the maintenance as stated in the scope of work and for repairs to the fire sprinkler system. (Travel time shall not be compensated)

<sup>\*\*</sup>The price on this line shall represent all the labor, travel time, material, equipment, services, incidentals, permits and licenses, required to install and program new dialers to telephone numbers for alarm panels, identified by and as requested by the City of Greenacres.



#### **BIDDERS CERTIFICATION**

The undersigned bidder certifies that this bid proposal package is submitted in accordance with the specifications in its entirety and with full understanding of the conditions governing this bid.

Acknowledgement is hereby made of the following Addendum(s) received since issuance of Bid Documents: Addendum No. \_\_\_\_\_ Dated: \_\_\_\_ Dated: \_\_\_\_\_ Addendum No. \_\_\_\_\_ Dated: \_\_\_\_ Addendum No. Dated: The undersigned hereby certifies that he/she is an authorized representative of the Company who may legally bind the Company: \*SIGNATURE: \_\_\_\_\_\_ DATE: \_\_\_\_\_ Printed Title: Company Name: \_\_\_\_\_ Legal Name Address: City, State, Zip: Telephone No.: \_\_\_\_\_ Fax No.: \_\_\_\_\_ Federal I.D. #: \*Signature must be affixed. BIDDER CHECKLIST All bid proposals shall be submitted on the City provided bid package forms. Failure to do so may cause the bid proposal to be rejected. All blanks on the bid proposal forms must be completed. Supplemental information may be attached to the bid package forms. Bidder shall return a complete set of all bid package forms as listed below. Failure to submit the required documents may result in your bid proposal being considered non responsive. 1. Is the Minimum Qualifications of Bidders information per Special Term and Condition 2-6 included with the bid proposal? Yes \_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_ 2. Are addendums (if any issued) acknowledged? Yes \_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_ 3. Provided copies of required licenses and certifications? Yes \_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_ 4. Are all Bid Proposal pages completed and signed? Yes \_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_ Yes \_\_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_ 5. Is the Bidders Qualification form submitted? 6. Is the Reference list submitted? Yes \_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_ 7. Vendor contact information submitted? Yes \_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_ 8. Is list of Proposed Subcontractors submitted? Yes No 9. Is Drug-Free Workplace form submitted? Yes No



#### **BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS**

The bidder, as a result of this bid, MUST hold a County and/or Municipal Contractor's Business Tax Receipt in the area of their fixed business location. Each bidder MUST complete the following information and submit with their bid proposal in order for the bid proposal to be considered:

1.	Legal Name and Address:		
	Name:		
	Address:		
	City, State, Zip:	Phone:	
	Email:	Fax:	
The I	ength of time (continuous) in business und	ler the above stated legal name	e:years.
2.	Check One: Corporation ( )	Partnership()	Individual()
3.	If Corporation, complete: Date of Incorporation:	State in which Incorporated:	
4.	If an out-of-state Corporation, currently authorization:		orida, give date of such
5.	The length of time (continuous) in busin	ess:years	
6.	Length of time (continuous) in business	in Florida:yea	rs
	Name and Title of Principal Officers:	<u>Date</u>	Elected:
_		<del> </del>	
_			

Note: Information requested herein and submitted by the bidders will be analyzed by the City of Greenacres and will be a factor considered in awarding any resulting agreement. The purpose is to ensure that the bidder, in the sole opinion of the City of Greenacres, can sufficiently and efficiently perform all the required services in a timely and satisfactory manner as will be required by the subject agreement.



#### SITE INSPECTION FORM

(Name of person who inspected site of proposed work for your firm)

Name:	
Date of Inspection:	
Name of Proposer, Corporation, Firm or Individual:	
Business Address of Corporation, Firm or Individual:	
Phone Number:	
By:	
By:Signature	
Typed Name and Title	
City Representative:	
By:	
Signature	
Typed Name and Title	



#### PROFESSIONAL REFERENCES

Complete the form below with at least five (5) *current and pertinent* professional references that the City can contact in relation to bidder's qualifications and experience in completing similar projects. Failure to furnish this information may be grounds for rejection of the bid proposal.

Date(s): Status:

1. Name and Address of Firm, City, County, or Agency

	Bia number:
	Contact:
	Telephone No:
	Email:
Scope of work/ Project Description:  Average response time for repairs:	
2. Name and Address of Firm, City, County, or Agency	Date(s):
	Status:
	Bid Number:
	Contact:
	Telephone No:
	Email:
Average response time for repairs:	
3. Name and Address of Firm, City, County, or Agency	Date(s):
	Status:
	Bid Number:
	Contact:
	Telephone No:
	Email:
Scope of work/ Project Description:  Average response time for repairs:	
4. Name and Address of Firm, City, County, or Agency	Date(s):
	Status:
	Bid Number:
	Contact:
	Telephone No:
	Email:
Scope of work/ Project Description:  Average response time for repairs:	



#### PROFESSIONAL REFERENCES - CONTINUED

5. Name and Address of Firm, City, County, or Agency	Date(s):
	Status:
	Bid Number:
	Contact:
	Telephone No:
	Email:
Scope of work/ Project Description:	
Average response time for repairs:	
6. Name and Address of Firm, City, County, or Agency	Date(s):
	Status:
	Bid Number:
	Contact:
	Telephone No:
	Email:
Average response time for repairs:	
7. Name and Address of Firm, City, County, or Agency	Date(s):
7. Name and Address of Firm, City, County, of Agency	Status:
	Bid Number:
	Contact:
	Telephone No:
	Email:
Scope of work/ Project Description:  Average response time for repairs:	
8. Name and Address of Firm, City, County, or Agency	Date(s):
o. Hamo and Address of Firm, Oity, County, of Agency	Status:
	Bid Number:
	Contact:
	Telephone No:
	Email:
Scope of work/ Project Description:	
Average response time for repairs:	
Company Name: Sig	jnature:



#### DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION

Whenever two (2) or more bid proposals, which are equal with respect to price, quality, and service, are received by the City of Greenacres for the procurement of commodities or contractual services, a bid proposal received from a business that certifies that it has implemented a drug-free workplace program shall be given preference in the award process. In order to have a drug-free workplace program, a business shall:

- (1) Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession or use of controlled substances is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.
- (2) Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
- (3) Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under bid a copy of the statement specified in number (1).
- (4) In the statement specified in number (1), notify the employees that as a condition for working on the commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employee will abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction on or plea of guilty or nolo contendre to any violation of Chapter 893, Florida Statutes or of any controlled substance law of the United States or any singular state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction.
- (5) Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee's community by any employee who is so convicted.
- (6) Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of Section 287.087, Florida Statutes.

This Certification is submitted		ridual's Name)	
the(Title/Position with Com	of _ pany/Vendor)	(Name of Compa	 any/Vendor)
Who does hereby certify that so which meets the requirements of through (6) above.			
Date		Signature	
(Purchasing Form 93-014)			



#### LIST OF PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS

The undersigned bidder hereby designates, as follows, all major subcontractors whom he/she proposes to utilize for the major areas of work for the project. The bidder is further notified that all subcontractors shall be properly licensed and shall be required to furnish the CITY with a Certificate of Insurance in accordance with the agreement general conditions. Failure to furnish this information may be grounds for rejection of the bidder's bid proposal. (If no subcontractors are proposed, state "None" on first line below.)

Name and Address of Subcontractor	Scope of Work/Phase(s)	License #
1.		
2.		
3.		
0.		
4.		-
4.		
		+
5.		
5.		+
Cimpature and Data		
Signature and Date		
Title/Company		
Title/Company		



#### **SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES**

# CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE § 287.135

As provided in Section 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time, by entering into the Contract Documents, the Contractor certifies that it and any authorized subcontractors are not participating in a boycott of Israel. The City and Contractor agree that the City will have the right to immediately terminate the Contract Documents if the Contractor and/or any authorized subcontractors is found to have been placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in a boycott of Israel.

Print Name	, on behalf of	Company Name	,
Certifies that	Company Name	does not:	
1. Participate in a bo	ycott of Israel.		
	Signature and Date		
	Title/Company		



#### E-VERIFY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

#### Definitions:

"Contractor" means a person or entity that has entered or is attempting to enter into a contract with a public employer to provide labor, supplies, or services to such employer in exchange for salary, wages, or other remuneration.

"Subcontractor" means a person or entity that provides labor, supplies, or services to or for a contractor or another subcontractor in exchange for salary, wages, or other remuneration.

Effective January 1, 2021, public and private employers, contractors and subcontractors will begin required registration with, and use of the E-verify system in order to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. Vendor/Consultant/Contractor acknowledges and agrees to utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify System to verify the employment eligibility of:

- (a) All persons employed by Vendor/Consultant/Contractor to perform employment duties within Florida during the term of the contract; and
- (b) All persons (including subvendors/subconsultants/subcontractors) assigned by Vendor/Consultant/Contractor to perform work pursuant to the contract with the Department. The Vendor/Consultant/Contractor acknowledges and agrees that use of the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify System during the term of the contract is a condition of the contract with the City of Greenacres; and

Should vendor become successful Contractor awarded for the above-named project, by entering into this Contract, the Contractor becomes obligated to comply with the provisions of Section 448.095, Fla. Stat., "Employment Eligibility," as amended from time to time. This includes but is not limited to utilization of the EVerify System to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees, and requiring all subcontractors to provide an affidavit attesting that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with, an unauthorized alien. The contractor shall maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of the contract. Failure to comply will lead to termination of this Contract, or if a subcontractor knowingly violates the statute, the subcontract must be terminated immediately. Any challenge to termination under this provision must be filed in the Circuit Court no later than 20 calendar days after the date of termination. If this contract is terminated for a violation of the statute by the Contractor, the Contractor may not be awarded a public contract for a period of 1 year after the date of termination.

Company Name:		
Authorized Signature:		
Print Name:		_
Title:		
Date:		_
Phone:		_
Email:		
Website:		



#### **NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT**

	TE OF)	
COUN	NTY OF)SS	
		ng first duly sworn deposes
and sa	eays that:	
1.	He/she is the	, (Owner, Partner, Officer, , the Offeror that
2.	He/she is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Proposal and of all pertinent circumstances respecting such Proposal;	
3.	Such Proposal is genuine and is not a collusive or sham	Proposal;

- 4. Neither the said Offeror nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant, have in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other Offeror, firm, or person to submit a collusive or sham Proposal in connection with the Work for which the attached Proposal has been submitted; or to refrain from bidding in connection with such Work; or have in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion, or communication, or conference with any Offeror, firm, or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Proposal or of any other Offeror, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost elements of the Proposal price or the Proposal price of any other Offeror, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against (Recipient), or any person interested in the proposed Work;
- 5. The price or prices quoted in the attached Proposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the Offeror or any other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant.



#### **NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT**

WITNESSES:	DV.	
WITHEOOLO.	BY: Signature	
	Typed Name	
	Title	
STATE OF	)	
COUNTY OF	)	
The foregoing instrument	vas acknowledged before me this day of	
	, who was physically present, as	
(title), of	(name of entity) which is authorized to d	C
business in the State of Fl	orida, and who is personally known to me or who has produce	C
the following	as identification.	
Notary Public		
-	Print Name:	
	My commission expires:	



# AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH ANTI-HUMAN TRAFFICKING LAWS

The undersigned, on behalf of the contractor listed below ("CONTRACTOR"), hereby attests under penalty of perjury as follows:

The CONTRACTOR, by signing this affidavit as set forth below, attests that the CONTRACTOR does not use coercion for labor or services as defined in section 787.06, Florida Statutes. (Source: § 787.06 (13), Florida Statutes – Human Trafficking).

The undersigned is authorized t	o execute th	nis affidavit on behalf of Entity.
Date:	, 20	Signed:
Entity:		Name:
		Title:
STATE OF	)	
COUNTY OF	)	
		ledged before me by means of □ physical presence or □ 20, by,
		itle] of, a company
authorized to do business in th	e State of F	Florida, who is $\hfill\Box$ personally known to me or $\hfill\Box$ who has
produced	as	s identification, and who did take an oath under penalty
of perjury that the facts stated v	vith regard t	o section 787.06, Florida Statutes, are true and correct,
	•	ed to execute the foregoing instrument and bind  [CONTRACTOR'S Name] to the same.
Notary Seal		
		Print Name:
		My commission expires:



#### NOTICE OF BID

The City of Greenacres, Florida is accepting sealed bid proposals for Bid No. 24-022 Fire/Burglar Alarm & Sprinkler Systems. Sealed bid proposals must be received on or before **Wednesday**, **September 25**, **2024 at 3:00 PM** via DemandStar. **Any bid proposal received after the designated closing time will be returned unopened.** 

All bid proposals shall be submitted online through DemandStar. Bidders desiring copies of the bid document for use in preparing a proposal may obtain a set of such documents from DemandStar at <a href="https://www.demandstar.com">www.demandstar.com</a>.

The City reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bid proposals and to waive any technicalities or irregularities therein. The City further reserves the right to award the agreement to that bidder whose bid proposal best complies with the bid specifications. Bidders may withdraw their bid proposals by notifying the City in writing at any time prior to the deadline for bid proposal submittal. After the deadline, the bid proposal will constitute an irrevocable offer, for a period of sixty (60) days. Once opened, bid proposals become a record of the City and will not be returned to the bidders.

Monica Powery, CPPB Director of Purchasing

#### STATEMENT OF NON-RESPONSE BID NO. 24-022

If you are not submitting a bid proposal on this service/commodity, please complete and return this form to: City of Greenacres Purchasing Department, 5800 Melaleuca Lane, Greenacres, Florida 33463 or by email at <a href="mailto:purchasing@greenacresfl.gov">purchasing@greenacresfl.gov</a>. Failure to respond or submit a non-response three times may result in deletion of vendor's name from the City of Greenacres vendor list database.

COMPANY NAME:					
ADDRESS:					
SIGNATURE:					
We, the above signed have declined to submit reasons:	a bid proposal on the above because of the following				
Insufficient time to respond.	We do not offer this product/service or equivalent				
Our product schedule would not permit us to perform	Please remove our name from the City's Vendor database for the above commodity.				
Other (specify below)	for the above commounty.				
REMARKS:					
NON-RESPONSE MAY BE EMAILE	D TO PURCHASING@GREENACRESEL GOV				